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To the shareholders of Healthcare Activos Yield SOCIMI, S.A.

Opinion

We have audited the annual accounts of Healthcare Activos Yield SOCIMI, S.A. (the “Company”),
which comprise the balance sheet at 31 December 2022, and the income statement, statement of
changes in equity and statement of cash flows for the year then ended, and notes.

In our opinion, the accompanying annual accounts give a true and fair view, in all material respects,
of the equity and financial position of the Company at 31 December 2022, and of its financial
performance and its cash flows for the year then ended in accordance with the applicable financial
reporting framework (specified in note 2 to the annual accounts) and, in particular, with the
accounting principles and criteria set forth therein.

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with prevailing legislation regulating the audit of accounts in
Spain. Our responsibilities under those standards are further described in the Auditor's
Responsibilities for the Audit of the Annual Accounts section of our report.

We are independent of the Company in accordance with the ethical requirements, including those
regarding independence, that are relevant to our audit of the annual accounts pursuant to the
legislation regulating the audit of accounts in Spain. We have not provided any non-audit services,
nor have any situations or circumstances arisen which, under the aforementioned regulations, have
affected the required independence such that this has been compromised.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis
for our opinion.
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Most Relevant Aspects of the Audit

The most relevant aspects of the audit are those that, in our professional judgement, have been
considered as the most significant risks of material misstatement in the audit of the annual accounts
of the current period. These risks were addressed in the context of our audit of the annual accounts
as a whole, and in forming our opinion thereon, and we do not provide a separate opinion on these
risks.

Recoverable amount of investments in Group companies (see notes 4.1. and 6)

At 31 December 2022 the Company holds investments in Group companies of Euros 377,495
thousand (which represent 98% of total assets at that date). The recoverable amount of investments
in Group companies is considered a relevant aspect of the audit, insofar as these investments
represent a very relevant percentage of total assets. The recoverable amount of the investment in
Group companies is determined, for those companies in which there is objective evidence of
impairment, by applying valuation techniques which often require the exercising of judgement by the
Directors and the use of assumptions and estimates. Due to the uncertainty associated with the
aforementioned estimates, this has been considered a relevant aspect of the audit.

Our audit procedures included assessing the design and implementation of the key controls relating
to the valuation process, evaluating the existence of the evidence of impairment identified by the
Company, as well as the methodology and assumptions used to estimate the recoverable amount,
which take into account the unrealised gains from the real estate assets that are included in the
appraisals made by independent experts. \We also involved our valuation specialists to assess the
reasonableness of the main assumptions used by the Company. We also assessed whether the
disclosures in the annual accounts meet the requirements of the financial reporting framework
applicable to the Company.

Other Information: Directors’ Report

Other information solely comprises the 2022 directors' report, the preparation of which is the
responsibility of the Company's Directors and which does not form an integral part of the annual
accounts.

Our audit opinion on the annual accounts does not encompass the directors' report. Our
responsibility for the directors' report, in accordance with the requirements of prevailing legislation
regulating the audit of accounts, consists of assessing and reporting on the consistency of the
directors' report with the annual accounts, based on knowledge of the entity obtained during the
audit of the aforementioned annual accounts, and assessing and reporting on whether the content
and presentation of the directors’ report are in accordance with applicable legislation. If, based on
the work we have performed, we conclude that there are material misstatements, we are required
to report them.

Based on the work carried out, as described in the preceding paragraph, the information contained in
the directors' report is consistent with that disclosed in the annual accounts for 2022 and the
content and presentation of the report are in accordance with applicable legislation.
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Directors' Responsibility for the Annual Accounts

The Directors are responsible for the preparation of the accompanying annual accounts in such a
way that they give a true and fair view of the equity, financial position and financial performance of
the Company in accordance with the financial reporting framework applicable to the entity in Spain,
and for such internal control as they determine is necessary to enable the preparation of annual
accounts that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the annual accounts, the Directors are responsible for assessing the Company's ability
to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and using
the going concern basis of accounting unless the Directors either intend to liquidate the Company or
to cease operations, or have no realistic alternative but to do so.

Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Annual Accounts

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the annual accounts as a whole
are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor's report
that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee
that an audit conducted in accordance with prevailing legislation regulating the audit of accounts in
Spain will always detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud
or error and are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be
expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these annual accounts.

As part of an audit in accordance with prevailing legislation regulating the audit of accounts in Spain,
we exercise professional judgement and maintain professional scepticism throughout the audit. We
also:

— Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the annual accounts, whether due to
fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit
evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not
detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from
error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the
override of internal control.

— Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit
procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an
opinion on the effectiveness of the entity’s internal control.

— Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting
estimates and related disclosures made by the Directors.
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— Conclude on the appropriateness of the Directors' use of the going concern basis of accounting
and, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to
events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Company's ability to continue as a
going concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw
attention in our auditor's report to the related disclosures in the annual accounts or, if such
disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit
evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor's report. However, future events or conditions
may cause the Company to cease to continue as a going concern.

— Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the annual accounts, including the
disclosures, and whether the annual accounts represent the underlying transactions and events
in @ manner that achieves a true and fair view.

We communicate with the Directors of the entity regarding, among other matters, the planned
scope and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in
internal control that we identify during our audit.

From the significant risks communicated to the Directors of Healthcare Activos Yield SOCIMI, S.A.,
we determine those that were of most significance in the audit of the annual accounts of the current
period and which are therefore the most significant risks.

We describe these risks in our auditor’s report unless law or regulation precludes public disclosure
about the matter.

KPMG Auditores, S.L.
On the Spanish Official Register of
Auditors (“ROAC") with No. S0702

(Signed on original in Spanish)

Alejandro Nunez Pérez
On the Spanish Official Register of Auditors (“ROAC") with no. 15732

31 March 2023
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Healthcare Activos Yield SOCIML. S.A.

Balance sheet of the financial vear ending December 31. 2022- In thousands of
euros

December 31, December 31,

Assels Nole 2022 2021
Inlangible assels 8 -
Long-lerm investments in group and associated 1 N
companies 377495 204,307
Equily instrumenls 6 326,011 204,307
Credils Lo companies 14 51,484 -
Non-currenl assels 377,503 204.307
Trade and other receivables 244 -
Trade receivables, group and associaled companies 8 and 14 212 -
Other public administration, receivables §and n 32 -
Shorl-term investments in group and associated -
companics 3 %399 3457
Credils Lo companies 2,399 1,407
Other [inancial assels - 2,050
Other financial assels 8 320 -
Shorl-term accruals 8 72 5
Cash and cash equivalents 2,208 1,130
Currenl assels 5.533 4,592

Tolal assels

181,036 208.800
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Healthcare Activos Yield SOCIMI. S.A.

Balance sheet of the financial year ending December 31, 2022 - In thousands of
euros

December December 31,

Nel equily and Liabilities Nole 31. 2022 2021
Nel equily 10 338.487 187,429
Capilal 174,104 18,714
Share premium 91,318 35,350
Other equity holders' contributions 78,540 33.125
Reserves 161 (254)
Profit/(loss) for the period (5.726) 4154
Interim dividend - (3,660)
Nel equily 338.487 187,429
Long-term debts 9 34,035 =
Debt with financial institutions 34,035 -
Pavable o group and associaled companies 14 2,743 =
Non-currenl liabilities 36.778 =
Short-term debts 5,005 1,302
Debt with financial institutions ] 5,005 =
Other financial liabilities gand 10 - 1,302
Payable o group and associated companies 14 121 18,700
Trade and other pavables 2,645 1,468
Other creditors ] 1877 794
Other public administration, pavables gand 11 768 074
Current liabilities 7771 21,470

Equity and Liabilities 183.036 208,800
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Healthcare Aclivos Yield SOCIML. S.A.

Profit and Loss Account of the financial vear ending 31 December 2022 - In
thousands of euros

Profils and Losses Nole 2022 2021
Turnover 12 and 14 2,428 5.758
Other operaling income 12 0,438 2,199
Other operaling expenses 12 (16,146) (3,181)
Amortizalion and depreciation 7 (1) -
Results [rom operating activities (4,281) 4,770
Financial expenses (1.445) (622)

Group companies and associaled 14 {521) (622)

Other 9 (924) =
Nel financial income / (expense) (1.433 (622)
Profil/(loss) before income lax {3.726) 4.154
Corporale income lax 11 - -
Profil / (loss) for the period (5.726) 4154
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Healthcare Activos Yield SOCIML. S.A.

Consolidated Statement of Changes in Net Equity for the financial vear ending
December 31. 2022 - In thousands of euros

\) STATEMENT OF REVENUES AND EXPENSES

2022 2021
Profil / (loss) for the period (5.726) 4.154
Total revenue and expenses charged directly Lo equily - -
Tolal amount transferred to the profit and loss account - -
TOTAL RECOGNISED REVENUES AND EXPENSES (5.720) 4.154
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Healtheare Activos Yield SOCIMI. S.A.

Statement of Changes in Net Equily for the linancial vear ending December 31. 2022 - In thousands of euros

B) TOTAL STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY

Other equily Profit/(loss)
Share Share holders’ from previous Profil/(loss) for the Inlerim Total nel
Capital  premium  conlribulions  Reserves vears period dividend Fyuily
Balance al 1 January zoz1 us. 714 37.297 34.510 (b46) (1.3090) 3.871 (1.047) 100,418
Tolal recognised income and expenses - - -~ = = 4154 - 14,154
Transactions wilh equily holders:
Capilal increase - = = = = _ _ ~
Distribution of dividends - (1,047) - (1,536) - = (3,660) (7.143)
Other changes in equily . - (1.394) 1,028 1,300 (3.871) 1,047 -
Balance al December 31 2021 1n8.714 35.330 33.125 (254) - 4154 (3.660) 187.420
Total recognised income and expenses - = = = - (5.726) - (3.726)
Transaclions with equily holders:
Capilal increase (Note 10) 55.480 57.808 51,380 - - - - 164,758
Distribution of dividends (Nole 10) = (1,030) (5,963) > - (79) - (7.074)
Other changes in cquity = = - 415 - (4,073) 3,060 _
Balance at December 31 2022 174.10.4 01.318 78540 161 - (5.7206) - 338.487
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Healtheare Activos Yield SOCIML S,

Cash Flow Statement for the financial vear ending 31 December 2022 - In

thousands of euros

December 31,

December 31,

Cash Mlow rom operalions Nole 2022 2021
Cash flows from operating aclivitics
Profit/(loss) for the period before tax (5.726) 4154
Adjustments Lo the resull 1.445 622
Financial revenues - -
Financial expenses 1,445 622
Changes in operaling assels and liabilities 2,416 (772)
Trade and other receivables 1,806 (1,608)
Other current assels (567) (1)
Trade and other payvables L177 837
Other cash flow from operating activities 25.880 3.150
Dividends received 6 25,880 3,150
Cash Mows lrom operaling aclivities 24.015 7154
Cash flows from invesling activities
Payments related to investments (89.925) (9)
Group and associated companies 6 (89.917) (v)
Intangible assets (8) &
Cash lMows [rom invesling aclivilics (89.925) (0)
Cash flow from financing activilics
Proceeds from and payments for equity instruments 95.277 -
Capilal increase and other equity holders' contributions 10 03.277 -
Proceeds from and payments for financial liability instruments (18.923) (8,523)
Obtainment of new financing 9 17.340 -
Interest payments 9 (943) &
Amounts due to group and associaled companies 14 (35.320) (8,523)
Payments for dividends and other equily instruments (9.276) (5.842)
Dividends 10 (9.276) (5.842)
Cash flow [rom linancing aclivilies 67.078 (14.365)
Netincrease/(reduction) in cash or cash equivalents 1168 (7.220)
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of the period 1130 8,350
Cash and cash equivalents al end of year 2,298 1,130
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Healthcare Activos Yield SOCIMI. S.A.

Annual Accounts for the financial vear ending December 31. 2022

1. Activily of the Company

Healthcare Activos Yield SOCIMI, S.A. was incorporated on 1 February 2019 under the corporate name
of Roldania Investments, S.A. before the notary Fernando Fernindez Medina. On 26 July 2019, the
corporate domicile of the Company was modified. Later, on 18 September 2019, the company was
named Healthcare Activos Yield SOCIMI, S.A.

On 13 September, 2019, the General Shareholders’ Meeting of the company agreed on the adoption of
the special tax regime of "SOCIMI", defined in Law 11/2009, of 26 October, which regulates Publicly-
traded Investment Corporations in the Real Estate Market, with effect for the tax periods beginning 1
February 2019 (date of incorporation of the Company).

The Company and its subsidiary companies are part of the first leading platform in Spain for
specialised investment in real estate assets at the service of the healthcare sector, including nursing
homes, hospitals and clinics.

The Company's corporate purpose, pursuant to its by-laws, is as follows:

> the acquisition and promotion of real estate of an urban nature for its lease, including the activity
of renovation of buildings in the terms established in Law 37/1992, of 28 December, on Value-
Added Tax;

> holding shares in the capital of other publicly-traded real estate investment companies
(SOCIMISs). or in other entities that do not reside in Spanish territory that have the same corporate
purpose as them, and are subject to a regime similar to the one established for SOCIMIs as
concerns the mandatory, legal or statutory policy for the distribution of profits.

> holding stakes in the capital of other entities, whether or not they are residents in Spanish
territory, who have as their main corporate purpose the acquisition of real estate of an urban
nature for its lease, and that are subject to the same regime that is established for SOCIMIs as
concerns the mandatory, legal or statutory policy for distribution of profits, and that meet the
investment criteria required for such companies: and

> holding shares or stakes in Collective Real Estate Investment Institutions regulated in Law
35/2003, of 4 November, on Collective Investment Institutions, or any rule replacing it in the
future.

Along with the economic activity derived from the main corporate purpose, the Parent Company may
conduct other additional activities, with any whose income totals, overall, less than 20% of the
Company’s total revenue in a given tax period, or those that may be considered complementary
pursuant to the applicable law at any time,

The listed activities may also be totally or partially, conducted by the Parent Company, indirectly,
through holdings in other companies of identical or similar purpose.
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The tax regime of the company and most of its subsidiaries is regulated by Law 11/2009. of 26 October,
later modified by Law 16/2012, of 27 December, which regulates Publicly-traded Investment
Corporations in the Real Estate Market (SOCIMI).

Article 3 eslablishes the investment requirements for this type of Companies, which are:

L

<

The SOCIMI must have invested, at least, 80% of the value of the asset in real estate of an urban
nature intended for the lease, in land for the promotion of real estate to be used for that
purpose, provided that the promotion is initiated within three years following its acquisition,
as well as in shares in the capital or equity of other entities that are referred to in Section 1.
Article 2 of the aforementioned Law.

The value of the asset will be determined by the average of the individual quarterly balances
sheets for the financial year. The SOCIMI may calculate this value to replace the book value
with the market value of the elements that make up these balance sheets. which would be
applied to all balance sheets for the financial year. For these purposes, and if applicable, the
money or credit claims from the transfer of such real estate or shares that have been made in
the same or prior financial year will not be calculated when, in the latter case, the reinvestment
period referred to in Article 6 of the aforementioned Law has not passed.

This percentage will be calculated based on the average of the consolidated balance sheet in
the event that the company is the parent company of a group according to the criteria
established in Article 42 of the commercial code, regardless of residence and the obligation to
formulate consolidated annual financial statements. Said group shall be made up exclusively
of the SOCIMI and the rest of the entities referred to in section 1 of Article 2 of said Law.

Likewise, at least 80% of the income of the tax period corresponding to each financial vear,
excluding those derived from the transfer of the shares and the real estate assets both subject
to the fulfilment of their main corporate purpose, once the maintenance period referred to in
the following section has elapsed, must come from the leases of real estate and from dividends
or interests in the profits from said shares.

This percentage will be calculated on the consolidated result in the event that the company is
the parent company of a group according to the criteria established in Article 42 of the
Commercial Code, regardless of residence and the obligation to formulate consolidated
annual financial statements. Said group shall be made up exclusively of the SOCIMI and the
rest of the entities referred to in section 1 of Article 2 of said Law.

The real estate that makes up the assets of the company must remain leased for at least three
vears. For the purposes of the calculation, the time that the properties have been offered under
lease will be added, with a maximum of one vear.

The term shall be calculated:

.

b.

In the case of real estate that appears in the equity of the Company before the time of joining
the regime, from the start date of the first tax period in which the special tax regime
established in said Law is applied, provided that on that date the property was leased or offered
under lease. Otherwise, the provisions of the following letter shall apply.

In the case of real estate promoted or acquired later by the Company, from the date on which
they were leased or offered in lease for the first time.
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c. In the case of shares or equity interests in the capital of entities referred to in section 1 of
article 2 of said Law, they must remain in the assets of the Company for at least three years
from their acquisition or, where appropriate, from the beginning of the first tax period in
which the special tax regime established in said Law is applied.

In addition, Law 11/2009 establishes the following requirements in Articles 4 and 3

L. The shares of the SOCIMI must be registered and be admitted for negotiation in a regulated
market or in a multilateral Spanish trading system or in that of anv other Member State of the
European Union or the European Economic Area, or in a regulated market of any country or
territory with which there is effective exchange of tax information, uninterrupted throughout
the tax period.

]

The SOCIMI will have a minimum share capital of 5 million euros. There may be only one class
of shares. When the Company has opted for the special tax regime established in said Law. it
must include in the company’s name the indication *Sociedad Cotizada de Inversion en el
Mercado Inmobiliario, Sociedad Anénima”, or its abbreviation, “SOCIMI. S.A. This
requirement is met by the Company.,

3. Inaddition, as described in Article 6 of Law 11/2009, of 26 October, which regulates Publicly-
traded Investment Corporations in the Real Estate Market, the SOCIMI and entities residing
in the Spanish territory in which they participate that have opted for the application of the
special tax regime established by said Law, are required to distribute dividends to their
shareholders, once the corresponding commercial obligations have been fulfilled, the profit
obtained in the financial vear, its distribution must be agreed upon within six months
following the conclusion of each financial year, in the following form: (i) 100% of the profits
from dividends or interests in profits distributed by the entities subject to said regime: (ii) 50%
of profits arising from the transfer of real estate and shares or equity units, made after the
deadlines established in the investment requirements have elapsed. with the rest of said
profits being reinvested within the three years following said transfer, and failing that, must
be distributed in full: and (iii) at least 80% of the rest of the profits obtained.

As stated in Note 10, the Company has proceeded to distribute interim dividends from the profits of
the 2021 financial year during that financial year; the remaining profits obtained during the 2021
financial year were distributed during the first half of the 2022 financial vear. The Company did not
obtain any profits in the 2022 financial vear. Therefore, no interim distributions of profits have been
made.

As established in the First Transitory Provision of Law 11/2000, of 26 October, which regulates Publicly-
traded Investment Corporations in the Real Estate Market, it may be decided to apply the special tax
regime in the terms established in article 8 of said Law. even when the requirements therein are not
met, provided that such requirements are met within two years following the date of the option to
apply said regime.

In this regard, as of 31 December 2022 and 2021, of the requirements established by Law 11/2000, of 26
October, which regulates the Publicly-traded Investment Corporations in the Market, the Company
complies with all the conditions mentioned therein.
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The Board of Directors of the Company monitors compliance with the requirements established in
said Law, with the objective of maintaining the tax advantages of the same, estimating that said
requirements will be fulfilled in the terms and deadlines set, and recognising the corporate income
tax for the financial vear in that sense.

The Company is the head of a group of subsidiary entities, and in accordance with the current
ledislation, is required to separately prepare consolidated annual financial statements. The profit and
consolidated net equity of the Group totalled 22.516 and 437308 thousand euros, respectively (27,008
and 238,915 thousand euros, respectively, in the 2021 financial vear).

2. Basis for presentation of annual financial stalements
2.1. FAIR REPRESENTATION

The annual financial statements have been prepared from the Company's accounting records and are
presented in accordance with the General Accounting Plan, approved by Roval Decree 1514/2007, of 16
November, which approves the General Accounting Plan and the mandatory accounting legal
provisions, in order to show a fair representation of the equity, the financial position and the results
of the company during the corresponding financial year.

The Company's annual financial statements for financial year 2022 have been formulated by the
Company's Board of Directors on March 29, 2023, and will be submitted for approval by the General
Meeting of Shareholders, it being estimated that they will be approved without any modification.

22 ACCOUNTING PRINCIPLES NOT APPLIED

The accounting principles and valuation rules used by the Company to prepare the annual accounts
of the financial year are the same ones applied for the Financial Statements for the financial vear
ending at 31 December 2021.

2.3 FUNCTIONAL CURRENCY

The figures obtained in the annual financial statements are expressed in thousands of euros.

2.4. CRITICAL ASSESSMENT ASPECTS AND ESTIMATION OF UNCERTAINTIES

There are no relevant data on the estimation of uncertainty at the closing date of financial vear, as it
has not associated any significant risk that could involve significant changes in the value of assels or
liabilities in the following financial year.

The management estimates that there are no risks of significant uncertainties related to events or
conditions that may give rise to significant doubts about the possibility that the company will continue
to operate normally,

2.5. COMPARISON OF THE INFORMATION

The annual financial statements are presented for comparative purposes. with each of the items of the
balance sheet and the profit and loss account. in addition to the figures of the 2022 financial year,
those corresponding to the previous financial year, which were part of the annual financial statements
of the 2021 financial year that were approved by the General Meeting of Shareholders on 26 April 2022,
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Although the information contained in these annual financial statements is presented for comparative
purposes with that of the vear 2021, the operations thal have taken place in the 2022 financial vear
described in Note 5 make up a balance sheet and profit and loss account with very significant variation
between the two periods.

2.0 GOING CONCERN PRINCIPLE

The working capital of the Company at 31 December 2022, calculated as the difference between
current assets and liabilities, is negative for an amount of 2.2 million euros. Despite this negative
working capital, the Company has enough capital committed by its shareholders to carry out the
development of projects in the short and mid-term, and also has approved an external loan to cover
its needs, as is the case of an undrawn syndicated loan for 5.7 million euros at the closure of the
financial vear (see Note 9.1).

Both the Company's committed capital and the available sources of financing significantly surpass its
short-term payvment obligations.

In light of the foregoing, Company Administrators have prepared these annual accounts applying the
going concern principle,

2.7. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT

The Company efficiently manages its financial risks with the aim of having an adequate financial
structure that allows it to maintain high levels of liquidity, minimise borrowing costs, reduce volatility
due to changes in capital and ensure compliance with its business plans. The Company's management
of financial risk is centralized in its Financial Management, which has established the necessary
mechanisms to control exposure to the main risks that could have an impact on the Company's
operations. described in the following paragraphs:

Markel risk: Market risk is the risk that the fair value or future cash flows of a financial instrument
fluctuate due to changes in market prices. The Company's market risks arise from open positions in
assets and liabilities that accrue interests. to the extent they are exposed to general and specific
movements of the market. The administration sets limits to interest rate risk exposure that could be
acceptable, which are regularly monitored (see details below). However, the use of this focus does not
prevent losses outside these limits in case of more significant market movements.

fnterest rale visk: te Company's interest rate risk arises from long-term borrowings. External
resources issued at variable rates expose the Company to cash flow interest rate risk.

Liquidity risk: Liguidity management is carried out by the Group's Finance Department, which makes
the necessary cash forecasts and follows up on the annual budget and liquidity needs to guarantee
compliance with its financial obligations. The Company is not significantly exposed to liquidity risk
due to the maintenance of sufficient cash and the availability of financing to deal with the cash
outflows necessary in its usual operations.

Counterparty risk: the Company mitigates this risk by using top-tier financial institutions to arrange
its financial operations.
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Creditrisk: The Company has policies to ensure that sales are made to customers with an adequate
credit history. The value correction for customer insolvency involves the review of individual balances
based on customer credit quality, current market trends and historical analysis of aggregate
insolvencies. At 31 December 2022 and 2021, the Company did not present any significant recognised
impairments, as there were not any mature balances linked to credit risk.

3. Distribution of resulls

1.1 PROPOSED APPLICATION OF PROFTT

The Board of Directors of the Company will propose to the General Meeting of Shareholders the
application of the results of financial vear 2022 detailed below;

Basis of
Thousands of euros distribution  Application
Basis of application:
Profit/(loss) for the financial vear 2022 (5.726) =
Application to:
Losses from prior financial years - (5.726)
Tolal (5.720) (5.720)

The distribution of the Company's results for the financial year ending 31 December 2021, approved by
the General Meeting of Shareholders, was as follows:

Basis ol

Thousands of euros distribulion Distribution
Basis of distribution:

Profit/(loss) for the financial year 2021 4154 =
Distribution to:

Legal reserve - 416

Distribution of dividends i@ 3.738
Tolal 4.154 4154

4. Registration and valuation standards

The valuation standards used by the Company in the preparation of its consolidated annual financial
statements for the year ended 31 December 2022, in accordance with those established by the General
Accounting Plan, are the following;

4.1 FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS: ASSETS

Initial recognition

Financial assets are recognised in the balance sheet when their acquisition is carried out and are
initially recorded at fair value, including operating costs in general.

The financial assets held by the Company are classified as:
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Financial assets held for trading

Assets whose acquisition originates with the purpose of selling them in the short term. It is initially
valued at fair value and subsequently at its amortized cost.

Group companies are considered those over which the Company, directly or indirectly, through
subsidiaries, exercises control in the terms laid down in Art. 42 of the Commercial Code, or when
companies are controlled by any means by one or several natural or legal persons that act jointly or
are under a single management by agreements or statutory clauses.

Associated companies are considered those over which the Company, directly or indirectly, through
subsidiaries, exercises significant influence. Significant influence is the power to intervene in the
decisions of financial and operating policy of a company, without this implving the existence of control
orjoint control over said company. Existence of significant influence is assessed considering for these
purposes the potential voting rights that can be exercised or converted at the end of the financial vear,
and also considering the potential voting rights held by the Company or the other company.

Multigroup companies are considered those managed jointly by the Company or one or some of the
group companies, including entities or dominant natural persons, and one or several third parties
from outside the group.

Investments in group associated and multigroup companies, are initially recognised at cost, which is
equivalent to the fair value of the consideration delivered. including, for investments in associated and
multigroup companies, the transaction costs incurred. These are later assessed at cosl, minus the
accrued amount of valuation adjustments for impairment.

Loans and collection items

These correspond to credits (commercial or non-commercial) originated by the Company in
exchange for supplying cash, goods or services directly and whose collections are of a determined or
determinable amount and that are not traded in an active market. They are subsequently valued at
their amortized cost by recognising the interest accrued based on their effective interest rate in the
income statement,

The Company applies impairment criteria to those customers covered by an insurance enlity, to the
extent that the customer debts exceed 180 days from the expiration date for the amount of the
uninsured part, and to those customers not insured when they exceed 180 days from the expiration
date.

Cash and cash equivalents

Under this heading of the attached balance sheet, cash is recorded in cash and banks, sight deposits
and other highly liquid short-term investments that are quickly cash-realisable and have no risk of
changes in value.

Investments held until maturits
Investments held until maturity are securities representing debt with a fixed maturity date, fixed or

determinable collections, which are traded in an active market and which the Company has the
effective intention and ability to hold until maturity, other than those classified in other categories,
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The valuation criteria applicable to financial instruments classified in this category are those
applicable to loans and receivables.

The Company derecognises a financial asset, or part thereof, when the contractual rights to the cash
flows of the financial asset expire or are assigned. it being necessary to substantially transfer the risks
and benefits inherent in its ownership.

The disposal of a financial asset in its entirety implies the recognition of results for the difference
between its book value and the sum of the consideration received, net of transaction expenses,
including the assets obtained or liabilities assumed and any deferred profit or loss on consolidated
recognised income and expenses in the consolidated shareholders’ equity.

Impairment of the value of inancial assel

A financial asset or group of financial assets is impaired and an impairment loss has occurred, if there
is objective evidence of impairment as a result of one or more events that have occurred after the
initial recognition of the asset and that event or events causing the loss to have an impact on the
estimated future cash flows of the financial asset or group of assets, which can be reliably estimated.
The Company follows the criteria of recording the timely valuation corrections for impairment of loans
and receivables and debt instruments, when there has been a reduction or delay in estimated future
cash flows, caused by the debtor’s insolvency.

Likewise, in the case of equity instruments, there is an impairment in value when there is a lack of
recoverability of the book value of the asset due to a prolonged or significant decrease in its fair value.

4.2 FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS: LIABILITIES

Financial liabilities, including trade creditors and other accounts payable, that are not classified as
held for trading or as financial liabilities at fair value with changes in the profit and loss account, are
initially recognised at their fair value, minus, where appropriate, transaction costs that are directly
attributable to the issuance thereof. After initial recognition, liabilities classified under this category
are valued at amortized cost using the effective interest rate method.,

The financial liabilities, for valuation purposes, are classified into the following categories:

Debits and ilems pay - The debits for commercial transactions, which have originated in the
pu:chase of goods dnd services for traffic transactions, and the debits for non-commercial
transactions, which, not being derivative instruments, have no commercial origin, have been included.
These financial liabilities have been initially valued at their fair value, and subsequently, at their
amortized cost.

Ii ial liabilities held for b = Includes liabilities issued mainly for the purpose of repurchase
in the short term, lldhﬂltlts that are 11411 ofa portfolio of financial instruments identified and managed
jointly, when there is evidence of recent actions to obtain short-term profits, and finally derivative
financial instruments that are not contracted as financial guarantees, nor have been designated as
hedging instruments. These liabilities have been valued at their fair value both initially and
subsequently with allocation to the profit and loss account.

Bank loans and overdrafts that accrue interest are accounted for at the amount received. minus direct
issue costs. Financial expenses, including premiums payable in settlement or reimbursement and
direct issuance costs, are accounted for at the accrual criteria in the profit and loss account using the
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effective interest method and are added to the instrument’s book value to the extent that they are not
settled in the period in which they occur.

The Company derecognises a financial liability or a portion thereof when it has complied with the
obligation contained in the liability or is legally exempted from the main liability contained in the
liability either by virtue of a judicial process or by the creditor.

The difference between the book value of the financial liability or the part thereof that has been
derecognised and the consideration paid - including attributable transaction costs and in which any
asset assigned other than the cash or liability assumed will also be recorded - is recognised in the
profit and loss account for the year in which it took place.

4.3 CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS

Cash and other cash equivalents include cash at hand and current bank deposits in financial
institutions. Other short-term, highly liquid investments are also included in this concept, as long as
they are easily convertible into certain amounts of cash, and there is insignificant risk of any value
change. For that purpose, investments maturing in less than three months from the date of acquisition
are included. The cash flow statement includes as cash and other equivalent liquid assets bank
overdrafts repayable on demand and that form part of the company's cash management. Bank
overdrafts are recognised in the consolidated balance sheet as financial liabilities for debts with credit
entities.

4.4 CORPORATE INCOME TAX

The tax expense or income against profits represents the current as well as deferred taxes.
The Company does not pay tax under a consolidated tax regime, by doing so individually for each of
the companies.

The differences existing between the accounting result and the tax result have been considered. this
being understood as the tax base of the Corporate Income Tax. These differences are due to the
unequal definition of income and expenses in the economic and tax spheres and to the different time
criteria for income and expenses in the aforementioned spheres.

The differences are classified into:

> Permanent differences, produced between the tax base of said tax and the accounting result
before taxes for the financial year, which do not reverse in subsequent periods, excluding the
olfsel losses.

>  Temporary differences are those derived from the different valuation - accounting and fiscal -
attributed to the assets, liabilities and certain instruments of own equity of the company, to the
extent that they have an impact on the future tax burden.
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As described in Note 1, the company is under the SOCIMI (Sociedades Andénimas Cotizadas de
Inversion en el Mercado Inmobiliario [Public Limited Companies with Investment in the Real Estate
Market]) regime regulated by Law 11/20009, of 26 October, regulating Public Limited Companies with
Investment in the Real Estate Market. In this regard. in compliance with certain requirements
established by said Law, the company pays a rate of 0% on corporate income tax. Article 10 of that Law
also regulates the special tax regime of partners, and particularly dividends distributed from profits
or reserves on which the special tax regime established in that Law has been applied, as well as income
arising from the transfer or reimbursement of capital stock of the companies opting to apply that
regime.

The Board of Directors of the Company monitors compliance with the requirements established in
said Law, with the objective of maintaining the tax advantages of the same, estimating that said
requirements will be fulfilled in the terms and deadlines set. and recognising the Corporate Income
Tax for the financial vear in that sense.

According to the principle of prudence, deferred tax assets will only be recognised to the extent that
it is probable that the Company will have future tax profits that allow the application of these assets.
Whenever the above condition is met, a deferred tax asset will be recognised in the following cases:

a) For deductible temporary differences:
b) For the right to offset tax losses in subsequent periods;
¢) For deductions and other unused tax advantages not yet applied for tax purposes.

The subsidiaries of the Company. in accordance with current accounting regulations, proceed to
activate the tax losses estimating that they will be able to recover all those accounted for according to
future financial projections that support such activation.

A deferred tax liability is recognised for all taxable temporary differences, unless they arise from:

a) The initial recognition of a goodwill. However, deferred tax liabilities related to a goodwill will
be recorded provided they have not arisen from their initial recognition.

b) The initial recognition of an asset or liability in a transaction that is not a business combination
and also did not affect the book result or the tax base.

Currenl Lax assels and lhabulitie

The current tax is the amount that the company satisfies as a result of the tax settlements of the tax or
taxes on the profit relating to a financial year. The deductions and other tax advantages in the tax
quota, excluding withholdings and payments on account, as well as the tax losses to be offset from
previous financial vears and effectively applied therein, will result in a lower amount of current tax.
However. those deductions and other tax advantages in the tax quota that have an economic nature
similar to grants are recorded in accordance with the provisions of the standard relating to grants,
donations and legacies received.

Valuation of current and deferred tax a Ls and hiabilitie

Current tax assets and liabilities are valued at the amounts expected to be paid or recovered by the tax
authorities, in accordance with current regulations.
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Deferred tax assets and liabilities shall be valued according to the types of tax expected at the time of
their reversal, according to current regulations, and according to the manner in which the asset or
liability is reasonably expected to be recovered or paid.

$3INCOME AND EXPENSES

The income and expenses are allocated based on the accrual criterion regardless of the moment in
which the monetary or financial current derived from them occurs.

However, the Company only records the profits realised at the year-end closing, while foreseeable
risks and losses, even if they are eventual, are accounted for as soon as they are known.

Income from contracts with customers are recognised depending on the fulfilment of performance
obligations with customers. However, the Company only records the profits realised at the year-end
closing, while foreseeable risks and losses, even if they are eventual, are accounted for as soon as they
are known.

Income from the sale of goods or services is recognised at the fair value of the compensation received
or to be received as a result thereof. Cash discounts, by volume or other types of discounts, as well as
interest incorporated into the nominal value of the credits, are recorded as a reduction thereof.

The Company obtains its income mainly from the management services provided to its subsidiaries
and the dividends received from them. The company holds loans with its subsidiaries that guarantee
the development of the financing operations for their assets, from which income is obtained derived
from the interests they generate.

4.0 PROVISIONS AND CONTINGENCIES

The transactions between companies of the same group, regardless of the degree of connection
between the companies pertaining to the group, will be accounted for in accordance with the general
rules.

The items that are the object of the transaction are initially accounted for at fair value.

The Company carries out all its transactions with related parties to market values. Additionally, the
transfer prices are adequately supported. so the Company's directors consider that there are no
significant risks for this aspect from which liabilities of consideration may arise in the future,

4.7 CRITERIA USED IN TRANSACTIONS BETWEEN RELATED PARTIES

The transactions between companies of the same group, regardless of the degree of connection
between the companies pertaining to the group, will be accounted for in accordance with the general
rules.

The items that are the object of the transaction are initially accounted for at fair value.

The Company carries out all its transactions with related parties to market values. Additionally, the
transfer prices are adequately supported, so the Company's directors consider that there are no
significant risks for this aspect from which liabilities of consideration may arise in the future.

$+.8 CURRENTAND NON-CURRENT ITEMS

Current assets are considered to be those related to the normal operating cvcle, which in general is
considered to be one yvear, as well as other assets whose maturity, disposal or realisation is expected
to occur in the short term from the closing date of the financial year. There are financial assets held
for trading that are held under the non-current assets, despite a short-term return. Assets that do not
meet these requirements are classified as non-current.
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Similarly, current liabilities are those related to the normal operating cycle. financial liabilities held
for trading, with the exception of financial derivatives whose settlement term is greater than the vear
and in general all obligations whose maturity or extinction will occur in the short term. Otherwise,
they are classified as non-current.

4.0 MERGER AND SPIN-OFF OPERATIONS AND NON-MONETARY CONTRIBUTIONS

In merger operations, business spin-off and non-monetary contributions between companies of the
group in which the parent company of the same or the parent company of a subgroup and its
dependents intervene, directly or indirectly, the assets that are contributed are valued for the amount
that would correspond, once the operation is performed, in the consolidated annual financial
statements of the group or subgroup in accordance with the Standards for the Formulation of the
Consolidated Annual Financial Statements established in RD 1159/2010, of 17 September 2010. However,
in the event that consolidated annual financial statements are not formulated, under any of the
exemptions provided for in the accounting regulations in force, the existing accounting values are
considered before the operation is carried out in the individual annual financial statements of the
contributing company

In the event that a difference between the individual and the consolidated accounting values is
revealed, said difference would be attributed against a reserve item in the beneficiary company.

The date of accounting effects for all merger and spin-off operations between companies of the group
is the date of commencement of the period in which the operation is approved, provided that it is
subsequent to the time when the companies were incorporated into the group; otherwise, the date of
accounting effects would be that of incorporation into the group. In the case of non-monetary
contributions of assets and liabilities that constitute a business, the date of accounting effects is
considered to be the date of public increase of the capital increase agreement provided that the date
of registration in the Commercial Registry is prior to the date on which the annual financial statements
for the year in which such contributions are made.

Likewise, and in accordance with the provisions of RD 1150/2010 of 17 September, in merger and spin-
off operations between companies forming part of the same group prior to the start of the immediately
preceding period, no information is included on the accounting effects of the merger or spin-off in
the comparative information.

5. Company lransactions

In the 2022 financial year, the following transaction was completed, marking the configuration of the
current Healthcare Activos Yield SOCIMI, S.A. Group, consisting of the following landmarks:

> On 31 March 2022, the company Healthcare Activos Europe. S.A. acquired 98.531% of the Company’s
stock for a total amount of 225,401 thousand euros, leading to the exit of the selling partners from
the ownership, and the entrance of a new main shareholder into the shareholders of the Company.

> On 31 March 2022, the Company subsidiaries' bank debt was refinanced through the arrangement
of a new syndicate loan the total payment of the previous debt (see Note ¢). This refinancing
affected the bank debt of the Company subsidiaries at that date, and the existing debt of the
companies subsequently acquired on 8 April 2022. The new financing obtained by the Group to
cancel the previous debt was secured by the subsidiary Healthcare Activos S.L.U. and the Company.

> On 31 March 2022, the new main shareholder of the Parent Company, Healthcare Activos Europe,
S.A.. paid out 5,000 thousand euros to the Parent Company through a loan between companies of
the group.
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> Onthe same date, for an amount of 51,003 thousand euros, Healthcare Activos Europe, S.A. acquired
from Sociedad Healthcare Activos Investment, S.A.. 100% of the shares in the capital of 13
companies that owned a portfolio of five operating nursing homes and nine nursing homes in
development, as well as an operating hospital from the company HAECP, Lda.

To carry out the operation, and to purchase the shares from the Company, the partners of Sociedad
Healthcare Activos Europe, S.A. disbursed loans for an amount of 204,882 thousand euros. The bank
debt of the acquired companies was refinanced.

> Subsequently, on 8 April 2022, the main shareholder, Healthcare Activos Europe. S.A. sold the
08.531% stake it held in the Company, which it had previously purchased on 31 March 2022, for the
same price of 225,401 thousand euros, to the new Company shareholders listed in Note 10: thus
reinforcing its shareholder base with leading worldwide institutional investors that will support
the Group's future growth. The additional capital committed will support the Group's long-term
expansion, and its European development in key markets such as Germany, Italy, Belgium and
Portugal.

> On the same date, Healthcare Activos Europe, S.A. sold to the Company 100% of the shares acquired
31 March 2022 from Healtheare Activos Investment, S.A., as well as all of the assets and liabilities
resulting from the aforementioned transactions. This was a net asset acquisition operation which
did not constitute a business.

These acquisitions were structured on the basis of the purchase-sale contract for shares and the
transfer of rights, signed 8 April 2022, in which it was agreed that the pavment for said shares would
be made from the offset of assets (rights) and liabilities (obligations) acquired and transferred from
the selling company to the Company. The sales price for the transfer of shares, as well as for all
assets and liabilities to the Company, was 69,481 thousand euros. To cover this amount, the
shareholders of the Company approved a capital increase through the offsetting of the aforesaid
claims. Atleast 25% of these claims, the purpose of which was to increase capital, was liquid, mature
and repayable, and with a maturity of no more than five years, as is established in article 301 of the
consolidated text of the Capital Companies Act.

All of the described operations were arranged through Healthcare Activos Europe, S.A. with the
sole purpose of facilitating the mechanics necessary to close a transaction that has made for the
current configuration of the Group, of which the Company is the head at 31 December 2022, All of
this has facilitate the entry of new institutional investors into the Company, that will enable the
growth of the Group and continue its international expansion plan, and conduct the described
assel operations.

> On July 8, 2022, the Company made a payment of 92 thousand euros to the company HAECP, Lda.
(former owner of 100% of the company stock of the subsidiary Sequéncialternativa. S.A.) and a
second payment of 9 thousand euros to the company Healthcare Activos Investment. S.A. (former
owner of 100% of the shares of the remaining companies acquired on 8 April 2022). These pavments
were made as adjustments over the initial price paid for the shares of companies acquired on 3
March 2022 by Sociedad Healthcare Activos Europe, S.A. from their former owners.

No significant company transactions have taken place in the 2021 financial year.
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6. Long-term investments in group and associated companies

The value of the long-term investments in group and associated companies on December 31, 2022 and
2021 is as follows. The movement that has taken place in the 2022 financial vear is also shown

hereinunder:

December Acquisition  Contribution December
Thousand of euros 31 2021 Incorporation of funds  Dividends  Other J1, 2022
Healtheare Activos Financing, S.1.U. 144545 (1) 5 (23.600)  83.385 204,319
Healtheare Activos Yield Growth, S.L.U. 24.748 - = (2,000) (22,748) -
Healtheare Activos Inmobiliarios 3, S.L.U. = 4002 - - (4.a02) -
Healtheare Activos Inmobiliarios 8, S.L.U. = 5,865 = - (5803 <
Healtheare Activos Inmobiliarios 1o, S.L.U. = 10,1604 - - (10.164) -
Healtheare Activos Inmobiliarios 18, S.L.U. = 4532 - - (4352 -
Healtheare Activos Inmohiliarios 26, S.L.U. - 3166 = - (3.106) =
Healtheare Activos Inmaobiliarios 13, S.L.U. 32,0068 = - (z70)  (32.008) -
Healtheare Activos Inmobiliarios 14, S.L.U. - 3,005 5.458 ~ - 9,103
Healtheare Activos Inmobiliarios 15, S.L.U. - 06 1.855 - - 2,820
Healtheare Activos Inmobiliarios 2o, S.L.U, - 3,457 48 ~ 5 8.200
Healtheare Activos Inmobiliarios 21, S.L.U. = 2,004 4405 - - 7,420
Healtheare Activos Inmobiliarios 22, S.1.U. 5 - 2471 = - 2,486
Healtheare Activos Inmobiliarios 23, S.L.U. = 1,251 5,403 - -~ 0,714
Healtheare Activos Imobiliarios 24, S.1.U. a 1816 35,223 - = 7.030
Healtheare Activos Inmobiliarios 23, S.L.U. = 2,461 3.010 . - 6,371
Healthcare Activos Inmobiliarios 29, S.L.U. = 3 10 = = 13
Healtheare Activos Inmobiliarios 30, S.L.U, - 3 3,750 - = 3,750
Healtheare Activos Inmobiliarios 31, S.L.U. = 3 = = - 3
Healtheare Activos Inmobiliarios 32, S.L.U. - 3 2 = = 3
Healtheare Activos Inmobiliarios 33, S.L.U. = 3 - - - 3
Healtheare Activos Inmobiliarios 34, S.1L.U, - 3 = = 2 3
Provilae Centros Asistenciales, S.1. 2,031 = = - - 2,03
Sequénciallernativa, S.A. - 6,638 = - = 0,638
Healtheare Activos Inmobiliarios Belgium.
SR.L ’ 3 = z < ;
Senre, S.R.L. = 10,533 - - - 10,533
De Wilde, S.R.L. = 6,603 - - - 0,605
Ladolcevita, S.A. . 21,287 = - - 21,287
RV Invest, N.V, a 20,600 - - - 20,600
Total 204,307 noa8o T304 (25.880) - 320,011

As a consequence of the operations described in Note 5. the Company has made acquisitions of assets
in the 2022 financial year by acquiring the shares outlined in the foregoing table.

The movements included in the overall 2022 financial year movement in the "Other” section arose
from the merger that took place among some of the Company's subsidiaries. By deed of 26 July 2022,
the Company agreed on the merger by absorption by Healthcare Activos Financing, S.L.U. (absorbing
company) over the following absorbed companies: Healthcare Activos Inmobiliarios 13. S.L.U.:
Healthcare Activos Yield Growth, S.L.U., Healthcare Activos Inmobiliarios 5. S.L.U.. Healtheare Activos
Inmobiliarios 8, S.L.U., Healthcare Activos Inmobiliarios 10. S.L.U., Healthcare Activos Inmobiliarios
18, S.L.U., and Healthcare Activos Inmobiliarios 26, S.L.U..
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No company was purchased or incorporated in the 2021 financial vear.

The company received extraordinary dividends charged to the return of partners' contributions in
the amount of 3,150 thousand euros, originating from the subsidiary Healthcare Activos Yield Growth
S.L.U. in the 2021 financial vear. The company made shareholders' contributions totalling 10 thousand
euros to the subsidiary Healthcare Activos Inmobiliarios 22, S.L.U. The information on shares in group
subsidiaries for the 2022 and 2021 financial years is shown in Annex 1.

7. Intangible fixed assels

The breakdown of intangible fixed assets for financial vears 2022 and 2021 is as follows:

T
Thousand of euros applications Total
Balance al December 31 2020 - -
Additions = =
Disposals - -
Translers - -
Balance al December 31 2021 - -
Additions 8 8
Disposals - -
Transfers - -
Balance al December 31 2022 8 8

Additions for the 2022 financial year originated in the development and implementation of the Group's
new website.

8. Financial assets and other receivables

The breakdown of the financial assets by classes and categories is as follows:

Shorl-lerm
December 31, December 31,

Thousands ol euros 2022 2021
Trade receivables, group and associated companies (Note 14) 212 -
Currenl investments in group companies and associates (Nole 14) 2,399 3,457
Other financial assels 320 -
Non-current accruals 72 5
Tolal 3.203 3402

The heading "Other financial assets” includes an pavment on account of 520 thousand euros. made on
2 November 2022, on account of the acquisition of 100% of the shares in a Portuguese company that
owns a hospital in Montijo. The transaction is expected to be completed in the 2023 financial year.
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Following is a breakdown of the assets for the 2022 period that have a determined or determinable
maturity, and of which the amounts that mature in each of the five years following the year-end
closing and the rest until their last maturity must be reported.

Thousands of euros 2023 2024 2023 2026 2027 Rest T'otal
Trade receivables, group companies 212 - - - ~ - 212
Investments in group companics 2,399 - = - - - 2,309
Other financial assets 520 - - - - = 520
Non-current accruals 72 - - - - - 72
Tolal 3,203 - - = = = 3.203

Following is a breakdown of the assets for the 2021 period that have a determined or determinable
maturity, and of which the amounts that mature in each of the five years following the year-end
closing and the rest until their last maturity must be reported.

Thousands of euros 2023 2024 2023 2026 2027 Rest Total
Trade receivables, group companies - - - - = = -
Investmentls in group companies 3,457 - - = - - 3,457
Other financial assels = - = = = = -
Non-currenl accruals 5 = = = = - %
Total 3.402 - - - - - 3.4062

9. Financial liabilities and other payables

The breakdown of the financial liabilities by classes and categories, covering all financial liabilities at

fair value with changes to profit or loss., is as follows:

Thousands of euros

Long-lerm

December 31 December 31,

20212 2021
Debl with financial institutions 34,033 =
Group companies and associales (Nole 14) 2,743 -
Tolal 36.778 -

Thousands of curos

Short-term

December 31 December 31.

2022 2021
Debt with financial institutions 5.003 -
Other financial liabilities - L302
Trade and olher payvables 1.877 704
Group companies and associates (Nole 14) 121 18,700

Total

7.003 20,706
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9.1 DEBT WITH FINANCIAL INSTITUTIONS

The Gompany breakdown of amounts payable to credit institutions is as follows:

On 31 March 2022, the company Healthcare Activos Europe, S.A. formalized a revolving credit facility
in the amount of 40 million euros for the purpose of financing Group developments, with the financial
institutions Crédit Agricole Corporate and Investment Bank, (Spanish branch) and BNP Paribas. S.A.
(Spanish branch), each of which holds a 50% share. On 8 April 2022, this financing was transferred to
the Company through a purchase-sale contract for shares, and the transfer of rights explained in Note

p

At 31 December, this credit facility was drawn in 34,300 thousand euros. The due date is set for 2027,
by way of a single pavment made on the appropriate due date.

The formalisation costs for the loan totalled 404 thousand euros, and are shown as subtracted from
the balance under the heading “Amounts payable to credit institutions”. The financial expense related
to the allocation of such formalisation expenses accrued during financial vear 2022 amounts to 60
thousand of euros.

The loan accrues an interest rate referenced to the Euribor plus a market margin. Interests and fees
relative to this loan accrued during the 2022 financial year total 778 thousand euros, of which 75
thousand euros had accrued, and not been paid, at 31 December 2022.

The loan agreement establishes various agreements and covenants, including the fulfilment of certain
financial ratios that the Board of Directors estimates are fulfilled without incident at the end of
financial vears 2022 and 2023.

By credil facililies

On 21 April 2022 the Company formalised a credit facility with CaixaBank for the amount of 10.000
thousand euros, at market interest. The due date of the credit facility is 21 April 2023. At the end of the
2022 financial year, it was undrawn. Therefore, entirety of this credit facility is available. The interests
accrued by this credit facility over the 2022 financial vear totalled 40 thousand euros: of which 18
thousand euros had accrued, and not been paid, at 31 December 2022.

On 25 April 2022 the Company formalised a credit facility with Bankinter for the amount of 5.000
thousand euros, at market interest. The due date of the credit facility is 25 April 2023. At the end of
financial year 2022, the drawn balance was 4,979 thousand euros. The interests accrued by this credit
facility over the 2022 financial year totalled 34 thousand euros: of which 12 thousand euros had acerued.
and not been paid. at 31 December 2022.

0.2 OTHER FINANCIAL LIABILITIES

At the end of the 2021 financial year, the heading Other short-term financial liabilities included 1.302
thousand euros to be paid to shareholders of the Company. related with an interim dividend for the
profits of 2021. approved on 14 December 2021 and paid on 11 January 2022 (see Note 10).
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9.3 CLASSIFICATION BY MATURITY OF FINANCIAL LIABILITIES

Following is a breakdown of the financial liabilities for the 2022 financial vear that have a determined
or determinable maturity, and of which the amounts that mature in each of the five vears following
the year-end closing and the rest until their last maturity must be reported.

Thousands of euros 2023 2024 2025 2026 2027 tesl Tolal
Debt with financial institutions 5,084 - - - 34,300 = 39,384
Debl formalization costs (79) (80) (80) (80) (25) - (344)
Trade and other payables 1877 - - - - - 1,877
Group companies and associales 121 - - - 2,743 - 2,864
Total 7.003 (80)  (80) (80) 37.018 - 43.781

Following is a breakdown of the financial liabilities for the 2021 financial vear that have a determined
or determinable maturity, and of which the amounts that mature in each of the five vears following
the year-end closing and the rest until their last maturity must be reported.

Thousands of curos 2022 2023 2024 2023 2026 Resl Tolal
Other financial liabilities 1,302 - - - - - 1,302
Trade and other payables 704 - -~ = - - 704
Group companies and associales 18,700 - - — - - 18,700
Total 20,700 - - - - - 20,796

10. Nel equilty

10.1 SHARE CAPITAL AND SHARE PREMIUM

At 31 December 2022 and the Company's share capital totalled 174,104 thousand euros (118,714 thousand
euros at 31 December) represented by 174,193,682 ordinary shares (118.713.600 ordinary shares at 31
December 2021) of 1 euro par value each, all of the same class, completely subscribed and paid.

At 31 December 2022, the share premium of the Company totalled 91,318 thousand euros (33.330
thousand euros at 31 December).

Over the 2022 financial year, the following capital increases and share premiums have been carried
out:

> On 26 April 2022, a capital increase was carried out in the Company for the amount of 36,057
thousand euros with a share premium of 33.424 thousand euros, having issued 36,036,626 shares at
1 euro par value, with the exchange value consisting of the set-off of credits that subscribers held
against the Company.

> On7December 2022, there was a capital increase in the Company for an amount of 19,423 thousand
euros with a share premium of 24,474 euros, having issued 19,423,456 shares with a par value of 1
euro. This capital increase was dishursed on 16 December 2022,

During financial year 2021 the Company has not carried out any capital increases reductions, or
operations with shareholders other than dividend distributions.
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As aresult of the operation described in Note 5. on 31 December 2022, shareholders holding significant

stakes of the share capital of the Company were:

“o share

One Hundred and Twenly Investmenl Company
REI Spain B.V.

Durham County Council Pension Fund

CBRE European Venture Fund

TFL Trustee Company Limited

Healthcare Activos Management Patrimonio, S.L.
Olher inveslors

49.358%
37.855%
4.748%
4.351%
2.374%
0.627%
0.657%

Al December 31, 2021 the shareholders holding significant stakes of the share capital of the Company

were:

“s share

Nortia Capital Investment Holding, S.L.
[nmomutua Madrilena, S.L.U.

Altamar HA Yield Fondo de Inversion Privado (Chile)

Espai D'Inversions 2003, S.L.
Other investors (with stakes under 5%

15.160%
6.070%
6.070%

5.180%

67.520%

10.2 OTHER EQUITY HOLDERS' CONTRIBUTIONS

As of 31 December 2022 the Company held 78,540 thousand euros (33.125 thousand euros at December

31, 2021) under the heading Other equity holders' contributions.

On 17 and 29 November 2022, Shareholders of the Company have made contributions in the amount
of 1.084 and 49,396 thousand euros, respectively. These contributions to shareholders' equity were

disbursed on 24 November and 14 December 2022.

No movements have occurred in this item during the 2021 financial vear.

10.3 OTHER RESERVES

The breakdown of reserves at December 31, 2022 and 2021 is as follows:

December 31,

December 31,

Thousands of curos 2022 2021
Legal reserve 802 387
Other reserves (6.41) (641)
Total 101 (z54)

10.3.1 Legal reserve

Provision will be made for the legal reserve pursuant to Article 274 of the Consolidated Text of the
Capital Companies Act, which establishes that in any event, a figure equal to 10% of the profit for the
financial year will be assigned to the legal reserve until it reaches at least 20% of the share capital.

The legal reserve is not distributable and if used to compensate for losses, in the event that there are
no other sufficient available reserves for this purpose, it must be restored with future profits.
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At December 31. 2022 and 2021, the Company has not made provision to this reserve with the minimum
limit established in the Consolidated Text of the Capital Companies Act.

Pursuant to Law 11/2009, which regulates Real Estate Investment Trusts (Sociedades Andminas
Cotizadas de Inversion en el Mercado Inmobilario - SOCIMI), the legal reserve of companies that have
chosen to apply the special tax regime established in this law cannot exceed 20% of the share capital.

The articles of association cannot establish any restricted reserve other than the one previously
described.

2 ULIET res

On 19 August 2020 and 23 December 2019, the Company has carried out a capital reduction due to the
amortization of its own shares and, consequently, a redeemed capital reserve has been generated in
the amount of 645 thousand euros.

In the 2021 financial year, the Company allocated part of the accumulated amount of the account Other
equity holders’ contributions to offset prior years’ negative results accumulated as of 31 December
2020.

10.4 DIVIDENDS

During financial year 2022 the Company has carried out the following dividend distributions:

> On 23 March 2022, an extraordinary dividend was distributed in the Company shareholders' favour
by refund of the share premium in the amount of 1,930 Thousand euros. These dividends were
disbursed on 31 March 2022,

> On 26 April 2022, an ordinary dividend corresponding to the distribution of profits from the 2021
financial year was distributed in the amount of 79 thousand euros. These dividends were disbursed
on 25 May 2022,

> On 28 June 2022, an extraordinary dividend was distributed in the Company shareholders' favour
by refund of the Other equity holders' contributions in the amount of 2.982 thousand euros. These
dividends were disbursed on 12 July 2022.

> On 26 October 2022, an extraordinary dividend was distributed in the Company shareholders’
favour by refund of the Other equity holders' contributions in the amount of 2,082 thousand euros.
These dividends were disbursed on 4 November 2022,

During financial vear 2021 the Company has carried out the following dividend distributions:

> On 6 April 2021, an ordinary dividend corresponding to the distribution of profits from the 2020
financial year was distributed in the amount of 1,536 thousand euros. On the same date, an
extraordinary dividend was distributed in favour of the shareholders of the Company by means of
an interim dividend for the profits of the 2021 financial vear in the amount of 411 thousand euros.
These dividends were disbursed on 13 April 2021.

> On 30 June 2021, an extraordinary dividend was distributed in the Company shareholders' favour
by refund of the share premium in the amount of 1,047 thousand euros. Said dividend was
disbursed on 8 July 2021.
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> On 8 November 2021, an extraordinary dividend was distributed in favour of the shareholders of
the Company by means of an interim dividend for the profits of the 2021 financial vear in the
amount of 1,947 thousand euros. Said dividend was disbursed on 16 November 2021.

> On 14 December 2021, an extraordinary dividend was distributed in favour of the shareholders of
the Company by means of an interim dividend for the profits of the 2021 financial vear in the
amount of 1,302 thousand euros. Said dividend was pending at the end of the 2021 financial vear,
and disbursed on 11 January 2022.

11. Tax siluation

1.1 BALANCES WITH PUBLIC ADMINISTRATIONS

The composition of current balances with Public Entities is as follows:

December 31, December 31,

2022 2021

Thousand of euros Deblor  Credilor  Deblor Credilor
Tax authorities, VAT payable 20 282 - 207
Tax authorities, withholding and paymenls on account 12 - - -
Tax authorilies, payables: withholding lax - 486 - 377
Total 32 768 - 074

On 17 December 2019, the Board of Directors of the Company agreed to the acceptance from 1 January
2020 of the group of entities whose parent is the Company, opting for the application of the Special
Regime of the Value Added Tax of the Group of Entities, provided for in Chapter IX of Heading IX of
Law 37/1992, of 28 December. As of December 31, 2022 and December 31. 2021 subsidiaries Healthcare
Activos Financing, S.L.U., Healthcare Activos Inmobiliarios 13, S.L.U. and Healthcare Activos Yield
Growth, S.L.U. (the latter two were absorbed in 2022 by the company Healthcare Activos Financing,
S.L.U.) belong to this group.

On 30 November 2022, the Company agreed to include in the group the subsidiaries Healthcare
Activos Inmobiliarios 14, S.L.U., Healthcare Activos Inmobiliarios 15, S.L.U.. Healthcare Activos
Inmobiliarios 20, S.L.U., Healthcare Activos Inmobiliarios 21, S.L.U., Healthcare Activos Inmobiliarios
22, S.L.U., Healthcare Activos Inmobiliarios 23, S.L.U.. Healthcare Activos Inmobiliarios 24, S.L.U.,
Healthcare Activos Inmobiliarios 25, S.L.U.. Healthcare Activos Inmobiliarios 29. S.L.U.. Healthcare
Activos Inmobiliarios 30, S.L.U., Healthcare Activos Inmobiliarios 31. S.L.U.. Healthcare Activos
Inmobiliarios 32, S.L.U.. Healthcare Activos Inmobiliarios 33. S.L.U. and Healthcare Activos
Inmobiliarios 34, S.L.U.: and that will be applicable for the financial years beginning as of 1 January
2023,

11.2 CORPORATE INCOME TAX

As stated in Note 1, on 13 September 2019, the Company notified the State Tax Administration Agency
that they were applying the special SOCIMI (REIT) tax regime. The application of this regime has
effects for the entire tax period of 2022 and 2021.

At December 31 2022 and 2021, the Group does not keep any amount recorded for any tvpe of deferred
assets and liabilities (including negative tax bases) or deductions related to Corporate Income Tax.
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1.3 YEARS OPEN TO INSPSECTION AND AUDITS

According to current legal provisions, tax assessments cannot be considered definitive until they have
been inspected by the tax authorities or until the statute of limitations has elapsed.

In general, for the main applicable taxes, the Company has pending inspection by the tax authorities
for all financial years since its incorporation. Due to the different interpretations of the applicable
fiscal regulations, there could be contingent liabilities, which are not susceptible to objective
quantification. However, Management considers that the materialisation of these would be unlikely
and, in any case. defendable, and that they would not reach significant amounts in relation to the
annual financial statements and it has not been considered necessary to provide any extra provision
for this concept.

12. Income and expenses

12.1 TURNOVER AND OTHER OPERATING INCOME

Turnover corresponds to the Dividends received by the company from its subsidiaries and, in
addition, to the interests related with loans that it holds with them (see Note 14).

The heading Other operating income corresponds to the management contract existing between the
Company and its subsidiaries, and expenses recorded under the heading "Other operating expenses”
and that the Company has re-invoiced to subsidiaries (see Note 14).

12.2 OTHER OPERATING EXPENSES

The details of the main items included in this heading are as follows:

Thousands ol curos 2022 2021
Independent professional services 16,039 3.083
[nsurance premiums 102 96
Banking and similar services 5 2
Tolal 10,146 3.181

The heading Services from independent professionals includes management fees invoiced by the
managing companies of the Group for a total amount of 560 thousand euros (2,323 thousand euros in
financial year 2021), of which 507 thousand euros (2,123 thousand euros in financial year 2021) have
been re-invoiced to the subsidiaries of the Company under the management fee agreement
formalised between these companies and the Company.

It also includes expenses associated with the Acquisition of assets and financing derived from the
corporate restructuring operation explained in Note 5, which totalled 15,353 thousand euros (700
thousand euros in the 2021 financial year), of which 8,857 thousand euros were reinvoiced by the
Company to some of the subsidiaries (see Note 14). The expenses arising in the 2022 financial year
relative to the refinancing, restructuring and asset acquisition operation described in Note 5 mainly
originated in the success-based fees linked to the management contract from the selling shareholders
with the platform management (8,813 thousand euros) and the advisors associated with this
transaction. A total of 1.400 thousand euros for all other acquisitions of the financial is included. In
the 2022 financial vear, insurance costs totalled 102 thousand euros (96 thousand euros in the 2021
financial year), of which 74 thousand euros (76 thousand in the 2021 financial vear) were reinvoiced by
the Company to some of the subsidiaries (see Note 14).
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13. Information on the average period of payment to suppliers during financial
vear. Third additional provision. Duly of information of Law 13/2010. of 5 July

We provide hereinunder the information required by the Third Additional Provision of Law 15/2010.
of 5 July (amended by Second Final Provision of Law 31/2014, of 3 December). prepared as per the
Spanish Accounting and Audit Institute (ICAC) Resolution of 29 January 2016, on the information to
include in the Notes to the Annual Accounts regarding the average supplier pavment term in business
operations.

Average period of payment to suppliers 30 30
Ratio of transactions paid 30 30
Ratio of Lransaclions pending payment 30 30
Thousand of euros 2022 2021
Tolal paymenls made 2,137 3.076
Total payvimenls pending 736 778

Invoices totalling 2,137 thousand euros have been paid (standing for 100% of the total payments to
suppliers) in a period shorter than the maximum set in the regulations on payment default.

Pursuant to the ICAC Resolution, the calculation of the Average period of payvment to suppliers is
based on business operations linked to the delivery of goods or services, accrued since the entry into
force of Law 31/2014. of 3 of December.

Suppliers are considered, for the exclusive purposes of providing the information stipulated in this
Resolution, to be those trade creditors for debts with suppliers of goods or services, included in the
item “Trade creditors and other payables” of the current liabilities on the attached balance sheet.

“Average period of payment to suppliers” is considered to the period that transpires from the delivery
of the goods or services by the supplier and material pavment of the operation.

As of the publication of the aforementioned Law. and up to the present, the maximum legal term
applicable to the Company pursuant to Law 11/2013 of 26 July is 30 days (unless certain conditions
established in the law are met, which would allow the extension of the payment period to 6o days).

14. Transactions and balances with related parties

14.1 TRANSACTIONS WITH GROUP, ASSOCIATED AND RELATED PARTIES

The breakdown of transactions that have taken place in the 2022 and 2021 financial vear is shown in
Annex II.

The income identified in Annex 11 as Other operating income corresponds mainly to the management
contract existing between the Company and its subsidiaries, in force until 31 March 2022, as well as
the costs received by the Company that were entirely reinvoiced to its subsidiaries. The costs
reinvoiced to subsidiaries mainly correspond to insurance for damages and civil liability of the
huildings owned by the subsidiaries of the Company.
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The Company owns 100% of the equity units of the companies of the group with which it has carried
out transactions during financial years 2022 and 2021, with the exception of Provitae Centros
Asistenciales, S.L., which holds 50% of the shares at the close of the 2022 and 2021 financial years.

The company received dividends from the profits of the following subsidiaries in the 2022 financial

vear:
Dale Thousands

Company approved Type of euros

Healthcare Activos Yield Growth, S.L.U. 03/22/2022 Interim dividend 2021 60
Healthcare Activos Inmobiliarios 13. S.L.U. 03/22/2022 Interim dividend 202) 230
Healthcare Activos Financing, S.L.U. 03/22/2022 Interim dividend 2021 080
Healtheare Activos Yield Growth, S.L.U. 05/25/2022 Ordinary dividend 2021 5
Healthcare Activos Inmobiliarios 13, S.L.U. 03/25/2022 Ordinary dividend zo21 154
Iealtheare Activos Financing, S.L.U, 05/25/2022 Ordinary dividend 2021 4
Tolal 1.438

The Company received dividends from the profits of the following subsidiaries in the 2021 financial

vear:
Dale Thousands

Company approved Type ol euros

Healtheare Activos Financing, S.L.U. 03/31/2021 Interim dividend 2021 850
Healtheare Activos Inmobiliarios 13, S.L.U. 06/23/2021 Interim dividend 2021 200
Healtheare Activos Inmobiliarios 13, S.L.U. 06/23/2021 Ordinary dividend 2020 136
Healthcare Activos Financing, S.L.U. 06/30/2021 Ordinary dividend 2020 21
Healthcare Activos Inmobiliarios 13, S.L.U. 03/11/2021 Interim dividend 2021 201
Healtheare Activos Financing, S.L.U. 03/11/2021 Interim dividend 2021 2,300
Healtheare Activos Financing, S.1.U, 12/14/2021 Interim dividend zo21 1350
Healtheare Aclivos Financing, S.L.U. 12/30/2021 Interim dividend 2021 700
Tolal 5.758

14.2 BALANCES WITH GROUP, ASSOCIATED AND RELATED PARTIES

The breakdown of balances with group., associated and related companies as of 31 December 2022 and

2021 are shown in Annex I11.

2.1, Long-term balances

Creditor balances

At 31 December 2022, the Company held a creditor balance with Healthcare Activos Financing, S.L.U.
originating from Healthcare Activos Inmobiliarios 26, S.L.U. the company absorbed following the
merger described in Note 6. This loan, dated 31 March 2022, was granted for an amount of 6,002
thousand euros to the Company to manage the Group's cash surpluses following the refinancing
transaction that took place on the same date. This loan is due 31 March 2027 and accrues market
interest. The Company has made payments on this loan in the amount of 3,239 thousand euros in the
2022 financial year, and the interests pending payment at the closure of the 2022 financial year total

121 thousand euros.
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Debtor balances

At 31 December 2022, the long-term debtor balances with group companies totalled 51,484 thousand
euros.

As described in Note ¢, in financial year 2022 the Company formalized a revolving credit facility of 40
million euros meant to finance the developments of its Subsidiaries. The company manages the cash
of its subsidiaries through the granting of long-term credit facilities with maximums determined
depending on the projects each company carries out and their duration, at a market interest rate, The
drawn balance of these credit facilities, as well as the interests accrued and not paid at the closure of
the 2022 financial year are described in Annex I11 with the companies Healthcare Activos Inmobiliarios.
S.L.U.,, Healthcare Activos Inmobiliarios 15, S.L.U., Healthcare Activos Inmobiliarios 20, S.L.U.
Healthcare Activos Inmobiliarios 21, S.L.U., Healthcare Activos Inmobiliarios 22. S.1.U.. Healthcare
Activos Inmobiliarios 24. S.L.U., Healthcare Activos Inmobiliarios 30, S.L.U. and Healthcare Activos
Inmobiliarios 3z, S.L.U..

The Company also holds long-term loans with the companies Healthcare Activos Inmobiliarios 29,
S.L.U., Healthcare Activos Inmobiliarios 31, S.L.U., Healthcare Activos Inmobiliarios Belgium, S.R.L.
and De Wilde, S.R.L.. which originated on 21 and 23 December 2022, granted to these companies to
finance asset purchases. These loans have long-term due dates and accrue market interest. The
interests accrued and not paid on 31 December 2022 are listed in the short-term debtor balances with
these companies described in Annex I11.

On 8 April 2022, the Company, as the result of the operation described in Note 3, acquired a receivable
loan with the company Sequéncialternativa, S.A. in the amount of 4.366 thousand euros. with the due
date of 31 March 2027. This loan acerues market interests and the interests accrued and not paid at the
close of the 2022 financial vear total 141 thousand euros.

2.2 Shorl-term halancee
Creditor balances

At 31 December 2022, the short-term creditor balances held by the Company correspond to the
interests accrued and not paid for the loan explained in Note 14.2.1 with subsidiary Healthcare Activos
Financing, S.L.U.

Al 31 December 2021, creditor balances held by the company for the amount of 18 700 thousand euros
originated from a loan formalized on 1 August 2019, when Healthcare Activos Inmobiliarios 6, (now
named Healthcare Activos Financing S.L.U.), sold its share in Healthcare Activos Inmobiliarios 13.
S.L.U. to the Company. As a result of this sale, the Company held a payable balance with the selling
Company, as well as the accrued interests. The loan contract acerued market interest and a due date
of 1 August 2022. On 20 December 2022, the Company cancelled all of the principal and interests
pending at that date, which at the time of cancellation totalled 10.252 and 2.038 thousand euros.
respectively.

Debtor balances

At 31 December 2022, the short-term debtor balances with group companies totalled 2.611 thousand
euros.
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At financial year-end 2022 the debtor balances were chiefly attributable to interests accrued and not
paid at the end of financial year 2022, a consequence of the loans described in Note 14.2.1, for a total
amount of 1.168 thousand euros.

On 18 December 2020, the Company acquired 50% of the equity units of Provitae Centros Asistenciales.
S.L. from Magquavit Inmuebles, S.L.U., subsidiary fully owned by the company Healthcare Activos Yield
Growth, S.L.U. at that time. On the same date, the Company subrogated in the position that Maquavit
Inmuebles, S.L.U. held with respect to receivable balances from the company (Provitae Centros
Asistenciales, S.L.) in the amount of 1,081 thousand euros. Over the financial vears 2021 and 2022 the
company has augmented this loan, with the principal and interests receivable totalling 987 and 144
thousand euros, respectively, at December 31, 2022 (962 and 144 thousand euros, respeclively, at 31
December 2021).

Last, at December 31, 2022 and 2021 a total of 312 and 301 thousand euros, respectively, in the concept
of receivable VAT are included with the company Healthcare Activos Financing S.L.U. given the fact
that the company is head of the VAT tax group (see Note 11.1).

As of 31 December 2021, the debtor balances maintained in the short term with companies of the Group
correspond, mainly, to the part of the interim dividend received from the group company Healthcare
Activos Financing, S.L.U. for a total amount of 2.050 thousand euros, collected on 7 and 22 January,

2022,

As a consequence of the dividend dated 14 December 2021, described in Note 10, at vear-end 2021 the
Company had an outstanding balance for payment to its shareholders in the amount of 1,302 thousand
euros, which was paid on 11 January 2022,

Remuneration to Directors and Senior Managemenl

During financial years 2022 and 2021 the Directors and Senior Management of the Company have not
earned compensation. No severance pays or pavments based on equity instruments have been accrued
during the 2022 and 2021 financial vears.

No loan or advance payments have been granted to the members of the Board of Directors.

No pension obligations or life insurance have been contracted with respect to any member of the Board
of Directors. However, the Company maintains liability insurance for Managers and Directors.

14.2.5 Information regarding conflict of interest situations for the directors

At the end of financial years 2022 and 2021, the Company’s directors, as well as the persons related to
them, as defined in article 229 of the Capital Companies Act, the Directors of the Company persons
related to them, who hold positions or functions in companies with the same, similar or
complementary type of activity, have incurred conflicts of interest situations that have had to be
reported in accordance with the provisions of art. 229 of the TRLSC (Texto Refundido de la Lev de
Sociedades de Capital [Consolidated Text of the Capital Companies Act]). For these purposes. at the
end of financial years 2022 and 2021, the members of the Board of Directors Jorge Guarner Mufioz and
Alberto Ferndndez Sabater hold the position of Joint and Severally Delegated Board Members in the
company Healthcare Activos Investment, S.A.; and Healthcare Activos Investment 3. S.A.: while. in the
subsidiaries thereof, they hold the position of Joint and Several Directors.
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During financial years 2022 and 2021, the Parent Company’s directors have not carried out with it or
with other companies of the group transactions outside the ordinary traffic or in conditions other than
those of the market.

15. Other information
15.1 AUDIT FEES
The fees for account auditing provided to the Company by the principal auditor KPMG Auditores. S.L.

and other entities related to it, are set forth below:

Thousands of euros 2022 2021

Audit services 54 50

Other verilication services - -

Total auditing and related services 54 50
Tax advisory services 15 5
Other services i =
Tolal professional services 76 04

The auditing services billed to the Company totalled 22 and 12 thousand euros in the 2022 and 2021
financial years, respectively.

15.2 ENVIRONMENTAL AND CLIMATE CHANGE INFORMATION

Given the nature of the Company's operations, it has no responsibilities, expenses, assets, provisions
and contingencies of an environmental nature or related to greenhouse gases that could be significant
in relation to the equity, financial position or results thereof. For this reason, specific breakdowns are
not included in this annual report on the annual financial statements regarding information on
environmental issues.

The Group of which the Company is the parent company has an ESG Committee responsible for
identifying, evaluating and managing climate change risks. Although the Group has an ESG Action Plan
through which it is committed to measuring its carbon footprint, climate change is not considered to
have a significant impact on these financial statements. The Group adheres to the Principles of
Responsible Investment (PRI) by which it agrees to integrate ESG criteria in the investment processes,
and therefore takes into account the risks they could represent.

15.3 OTHER RELEVANT POST-CLOSING INFORMATION

On 15 March 2023, the Company acquired 100% of the shares of the Portuguese company Rockmont
Properties, S.A. for EUR 6.3 million, which owns an operating hospital clinic in Montijo (Lishoa.
Portugal) and managed by CUF. The events described above do not alter the financial statements at
vear-end 2022,
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16. Regulatory requirements arising from the status SOCIMIL. Law 11/2009.
amended by Law 16/2012

In compliance with the Reporting Obligations derived from the status of Socimi, established in Article
11 of Law 11/20009, of 26 October, which regulates the Public Limited Investment Companies Listed on
the Real Estate Market, the aspects included in Annex IV are indicated.

Barcelona, March 29, 2023
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Annex I - Shares in group companies as of December 31. 2022 - In thousands of curos

\equisition
incorporation % of Equity Equity holders' Profitor  Profil or loss, Interim Total net Net book
Name \ddress dale Holding Capilal contributions  Reserves loss prior years dividends euily value

Healtheare Aclivos Paseo de la Castellana, 45, 69 piso, 8/ o 8518
Financing, S.L.U, puerta izquierda., 28046 Madrid OH/ArF019 1007 115,53 40,403 (1404) - 103,000 204,319
Healtheare Activos Paseo de la Castellana, 45, 69 piso, w < B
Inmobiliarios 14, S.1LU. puerla izquierda., 28046 Madrid 04/8/2022 e ey : (439) (u) 1133 0:103
Healtheare Aclivos Pasco de la Castellana, 45, 69 piso, 100" 3
Inmobiliarios 15, S.L.U. puerta izquierda., 28046 Madrid 04/8/2022 Qe 49 - (143) (293) 05 2,820
Healtheare Activos Pasco de la Castellana, 45, 69 piso, o0
Inmobiliarios 20, S.1.U, puerta izquierda., 28046 Madrid 04/8/2022 O L34 = (104) (337) 871 8,200
Healthcare Activos Pasco de la Castellana, 45, 69 piso, _ a 208 _
Inmobiliarios 21, S.1.L. puerla izquicrda., 28046 Madrid 04/8/2022 1050 h=d = (122) (247) 842 7429
Healtheare Activos Paseo de la Castellana, 45, 6° piso, ”
Inmobiliarios 22, 8.1, puerta izquierda., 28046 Madrid 12112020 i 1 - () (4) 8 2480
Healtheare Activos Paseo de la Castellana, 45, 69 piso, . 0 g
Inmobiliarios 23, S.1.U. pucrla izquierda., 28046 Madrid 04/8/2022 1007 16 - (100) (70) 8) b.714
Healtheare Activos Paseo de la Castellana, 45, 6° piso, . g "
Inmobiliarios 24, S.1.U. puerta izquicrda., 28046 Madrid 04/8/2022 1007 103 & (99) (138) 784 7,030
Healltheare Activos Paseo de la Castellana, 435, 6° piso, o
Inmobiliarios 23, S.1L.U. puerla izquierda., 28046 Madrid 04/8/2022 1005 179 - (67) (01) a4 6,371
Healtheare Activos Paseo de Ta Castellana, 45, 69 piso, 0o
Inmobiliarios 20, S.1.1U. puerta izquicrda., 28046 Madrid 00/21/2022 WOk 30 - (13) - 18 3
Healtheare Activos Paseo de la Castellana, 45, 6° piso, — % g
Inmobiliarios 30, 8,11, puerta izquierda., 28040 Madrid 0b/21/2022 oo K759 B (85) B 3074 3750
Healtheare Activos Pasceo de a Castellana, 45, 6° piso, 10c% . ) @) B o :

Inmobiliarios 31, S.1L.U.

puerta izguierda., 28046 Madrid

00/21/2022
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Annex 1 - Shares in group companies as of December 31. 2022 - In thousands of curos (continued)

\epuisition
incorporation % ol Equily Equily holders® Profitor  Profit or loss, Inlerim Total net et book
Nane \ddress dale Holding Capital contributions  Reserves loss prior years dividends cyuily value
Healtheare Activos Paseo de la Castellana, 43, 6" piso, T o0
T " 3 M 5 i/ 22 = - 2 - - r.{
Inmobiliarios 32, 8.1, puerta izquicrda., 28046 Madrid VA 100t 3 (29) (26) 3
Healtheare Activos Pasco de o Castellana, 45, 67 piso, 100" W) .
Inmobhiliarios 33, S.L.U. puerla izguierda., 28046 Madrid 10/10/2022 e 3 - - 1 - ) - 3
Healtheare Activos Paseo de la Castellana, 45, 6 piso, o 0
Inmobiliarios 34, S.L.L. puerta izquierda,, 28046 Madrid 12/18/2020 1997 3 N - ! a B = 3
Provitae Centros taseo de la Gastellana, 83-85, planta , e 6 ) - .
Asistenciales, 8.1, 4°, 28040, Madrid 04/8/2022 e h - 304 (13 (1.500) = 5,000 2,031
- . Rua de Baden-Powell, 3, 5000-108
S meiallernativa, S.A. . o ) )22 Yo 5 5 ) -
equénciallernativa, S.A vila Real (Portugal) 12/21/2022 100 50 435 10 (663) (242) (410) 6,638
Healtheare Aetivos o » )
Inmobiliarios Belgium Turnhoutsebaan 277 B-2100 Deurne T i00% s B - (25) ~ ) (22)
SR ' (Antwerp), Belginm, . 4 - *
Turnhoutsebaan 277 B-2100 Deurne
Senre, S.L. R ; ; v - 5 5 - 2 55
enre, S.A (Anlwerp). Belgium. 12/21/2022 1007 (] 54 55 1,192 1,280 10573
i Turnhoutsehaan 277 B-2100 Deurne
De Wilde, S.0L. . 11/2022 Yo - 2 3 3 - 5 5
e Wilde, S0 (Antwerp), Belgium, 12/21/2022 100 Hoo 1 34 vt 750 0,005
2 Turnhoutsebaan 277 B-2100 Deurne
Ladoleevila, S. ; 130023 % } - - 7
doleevita, S.A. (Anbwérp). Bolihiin, 12/21/3023 100 0,400 13 (110) 621 0.044 21,287
7 Turnhoutsehaan 277 B-2100 Deurne
RV Invest, N.V. : W 522 - 32 - 2
" (Antwerp), Belgium, 10/19/2022 100 o 52 W3 1109 1086 20,609
Total 14013 133,055 47.028 (3.033) (352) - 191011 320,011




Annex I - Shares in group companies as of December 31. 2021 - In thousands of euros

Healtheare Activos Yield SOCIMIL S.A.

Acquisition
incorporation % of Equily Equily holders’ Profitor  Profit or loss, Inlerim Totalnet  Net hook
Nime Vddresy dale Holding Capital conlributions  Reserves loss prior years dividends cynily value
Healtheare Activos |’.:15L‘II de 1 (Euslc.!]atm. 43, sexto .
Financing, S.1.U. Piso, !luurl.:i izquierda, 28040 oli/1/2010 100% 3 144,418 1 0,180 - (5.200) 145,411 144,545
Madrid
altbonnsn Asfivac Pasco de la Castellana, 43, sexto
::;::::::';:;;:::';TIU piso, !murlu izquierda, 28046 ol/1/2010 100" 3431 8133 150 871 - (400) 12,102 32,008
* Madrid
Healtheare Activos Yield l’ilsun de la (.E:mlc‘llana. 45, sexlo
Growth. S.1.U. piso, !mcrla izquierda, 28046 08/1/2019 100% 3 24103 == 03 - _ 24231 24748
H Madrid
. Pasco de la Castellana, 45, sexto
:]l:::::;:::“::l;:t:hu piso, pucrla izquicrda, 28046 12/1/2020 100 3 12 - {3 (4) = 8 15
' Madrid
Provitae Centros Paseo de ln Castellana, 83-85, planta s
Asistenciales, S.1.. 47, 28040, Madrid S i 3 B 394 (42) (1:534) - 52 %031
Total 0.754 170,720 551 7,080 (1.538) (5.000) 180,054 204,307




Annex IL. - Transactions with group. multigroup and associated companies in the 2022 financial vear - In thousands of curos

Comprany

Type of Transaclion

Income/ Expense

Transaclion
Amounl

Valuation method

Healtheare Activos Yield SOCIMIL S,

Healtheare Activos Financing, S.1L.U.

Healtheare Activos Financing, S.1.U.

Healtheare Activos Inmobiliarios 14, S.L.U.
Healtheare Activos Inmobiliarios 15, 8.1,
Healtheare Activos Inmohiliarios 2a, S.L.U,
Healtheare Activos Inmohiliarios 21, S.1L.U.
Healtheare Activos Inmobiliarios 22, S.1.U,
lealtheare Activos Inmobiliarios 23, S.L.U.
Healtheare Activos lnmobiliarios 24, S.L.U.
Healtheare Activos Inmobiliarios 25, S.L.U.
Healtheare Activos Inmobiliarios 20, S.1.U.
Healtheare Activos Inmobiliarios 30, S.1.U.
Healtheare Activos Inmobiliarios 31, S.1LU.
Healtheare Activos Inmobiliarios 32, 81U,
Sequencialternativa, S.A.

Healtheare Activos Inmobiliavios Belginm, S.R.1.

De Wilde, S.1LL.

Healtheare Activos Financing, S.1.U.

Healtheare Activos Financing, S.1L.U.

Healtheare Activos Inmobiliarios 14, S.1.U.
Healtheare Activos Inmobiliarios 15, S.L.1U.
Healtheare Activos Inmobiliarvios 20, S.L.U,
Healtheare Activos Inmobiliarios 21, S.L.U.
Healtheare Activos lnmobiliarios 22, 8,10,
Healtheare Activos Inmobiliarios 23, S.L.U.
Healtheare Activos Inmobiliarios 24, S.L.1.
Healtheare Activos Imobiliarios 25, S.1L.U.
Sequéncialternativa, S.A,

Financial Interest
Financial Interest
Financial Inlerest
Finaneial Interest
Financial Interest
Financial Interest
Financial Interest
Financial Interest
Financial Interest
Financial Interest
Financial Interest
Financial Interest
Finaneial Interest
Financial Interest
Financial Interesl
Financial Interest
Financial Interest
Dividends
Services provided
Services provided
Services provided
Services provided
Services provided
Services provided
Services provided
Services provided
Services provided
Services provided

Financial Expense

Net Turnover

Nel Turnover

Nel Turnover

Nel Turnover

Nel Turnover

Nel Turnover

Nel Turnover

Nel Turnover

Nel Turnover

Nel Turnover

Nel Turnover

Nel Turnover

Nel Turnover

Nel Turnover

Nel Turnover

Nel Turnover

Net Turnover
Other operaling income
Other operating income
Other operating income
Other operaling income
Other operaling income
Other operating income
Other operaling income
Other operating income
Other operaling income
Other operaling income

(521)
38
108
7
130
130
5

4
03

70

1,438
0,400
9

4
4

T T

(]

Comparable Uncontrolled Price
Comparable Uncontrolled Price
Comparable Uncontrolled Price
Comparable Uncontrolled Price
Comparable Uncontrolled Price
Comparable Uncontrolled Price
Comparable Uncontrolled Price
Comparable Uncontrolled Price
Comparable Uncontrolled Price
Comparable Uncontrolled Price
Comparable Uncontrolled Price
Comparable Uncontrolled Price
Comparable Uncontrolled Price
Comparable Uncontrolled Price
Comparable Uncontrolled Price
Comparable Uncontrolled Price
Comparable Uncontrolled Price
Comparable Uncontrolled Price
Comparable Uncontrolled Price
Comparable Uncontrolled Price
Comparable Uncontrolled Price
Comparable Uncontrolled Price
Comparable Uncontrolled Price
Comparable Uncontrolled Price
Comparable Uncontrolled Price
Comparable Uncontrolled Price
Comparable Uncontrolled Price
Comparable Uncontrolled Price

11,342




Healtheare Activos Yield SOCIML S.A.

Annex 1. - Transactions with group. multigroup and associated companies in the 2021 financial year - In thousands of curos

Company

Type ol I'ransaelion

Income Expense

Transaction
Amounl

\aluation method

Healtheare Activos Finaneing, S.1..1.
Healtheare Activos Yield Growth, S.1.U.

Healtheare Activos Financing, S.L.U.

Healtheare Activos Inmobiliarios 13, S.L.U.

Healtheare Activos Financing, S.1.U.

Healtheare Activos Inmobiliarios 13, S.1L.U.

[lealtheare Activos Yield Growth, S.1.U.

Financial Interest
Financial Interest
Dividends
Dividends
Services provided
Services provided

Services provided

Financial Expense
Financial Expense
Net Turnover
Nel Turnover
Other operating income
Other operaling income

Other operaling income

(577)
(45)

Comparable Uncontrolled Price
Comparable Uncontrolled Price
Comparable Uncontrolled Price
Comparable Uncontrolled Price
Comparable Uncontrolled Price
Comparable Uncontrolled Price

Comparable Uncontrolled Price

Total




Healtheare Activos Yield SOCIMLL, S.A.

Annex I - Balances with group. multigroup and associated companies in the 2022 financial year - In thousands of curos

Long lerm Shorl-term
“u of equity Debtor Creditor Dehtor Creditor
Company Type ol relationship holding Balanee Balance Balance Balance
Healtheare Activos Financing, S.L.U. Group Company 100% - 2,743 2 121
Healtheare Activos Inmobiliarios 14, S.1L.U. Group Company 100% 10 - 3 -
Healtheare Activos Inmobiliarios 15, 8.1, Group Company 100% 20 - 28 -
Healtheare Activos Inmobiliarios 2o, S.1.U. Group Company 100% 4135 - 133 -
Healtheare Activos Inmobiliarvios 21, S.1.U. Group Company 100% 3,850 - 133 -
Iealtheare Activos Inmobiliarios 22, .11, Group Company 100% - - 5 -
Healtheare Activos Inmobiliarios 23, S.1.U. Group Company 100% 1012 - 138 -
Healtheare Activos Inmobiliarios 24, S.L.U. Group Company 100% 2,471 - 05 -
Healtheare Activos Inmobiliarios 23, S.1.1U. Group Company 100% - - 78 -
Healtheare Activos Inmobiliarios 20, S.1.U. Group Company 100% 8550 - 222 -
Healtheare Activos Inmobiliarios 30, S.1.U. Group Company 100% 45 - 28 -
lHealtheare Activos Inmobiliarios 11, S.L.U. Group Company 100% 5750 - 7 -
Healtheare Activos Inmobiliarios 32, S.L.U. Group Company 100% 10 - 10 =
Provitae Centros Asistenciales, S.1. lelated company 50% - - 1131 -
Sequénciallernativa, S.A. Group Company 100% 4306 - 141 -
Healtheare Activos Inmobiliarios Belgium, S.R.1.. Group Company 100% 0,121 - 14 -
De Wilde, S.R.L. Group Company 100% 0,510 - 14 -
Tolal 51,484 2743 2,0m 121

4



Annex 111 - Balances with group. multigroup and associated companies in the 2021 financial year - In thousands of curos

Long lerm

Healthenre Activos Yield SOCIMIL S,

Short-lerm

“ of equily Debtor Creditor Debtor Creditor

Company Type ol relationship holding Balanee Bal Balance Balance
Healtheare Activos Financing, S.1.U. Group Company 100% 2,200 18,700
Healtheare Activos Inmobiliarios 13, S.1.1U. Group Company 100% 20 -
Healtheare Activos Yield Growlth, S.L.U. Group Company 100% 57 -
Provilae Cenlros Asistenciales, S.1. Related company 50% 1,100 -
Total 1.438 18,700




Observalion regquirement

Healtheare Aetivos Yield SOCIMI S.A.

Annex IV = Regulatory requirements arising from the status of SOCIML. for the 2022 financial year

Information on the 2022 inancial yvear

a) Reserves arising [rom periods prior to application of the tax
regime established in this Law.

There are no reserves from linancial years prior Lo the application of the lax regime established by the Law, as the
Company was incorporaled in 2019, the financial year in which it requested application of the alorementioned Lax
regime.

b) Reserves lrom finaneial years in which the lax regime
established in this Law has been applied, differentiating the
portion of income thal comes from income subject Lo Lhe Lax rate
ol 0%, or 19%, from those that, where appropriate, have been
taxed al the general Lax rale.

The reserves from prior inancial years in which the lax regime established in this Law has heen applied from
income are the following:
Safetas al tpo Sujetas al tpn Sugetas al tipo

de gravamen  de gravamen general de

Miles e curos del v del w pravamen o Sajelas
Ferdtio 2019 - - - 0
Flerelcin 2020 - 387 - 1305
Fjerdein 2021 - an - -
Ejervicio 2oz - - = 45415
Tutal - 8oz = T340

¢) Dividends distributed from profils for each financial vear in
which the tax regime established in this Law has been applicable,
diflferentiating the portion that comes from income subject 1o
the tax rate of 0% or 10%, from those thal, where appropriate,
have heen taxed al the general tax rate,

The Company has distributed the following dividends, charged to profils:

Sidetor al U de  So sufeto ol Uipo de
Miles e vuros

a0 de diciembre de 200
i e bl e 2021

ke bl de 202

Wik nowdesnbire de 201
14 the dhiciembre de 2on
b e il e 22 1

Total 7 7.1

gravamen el w' gravamen del w' Vigna
Log7 Dividendo a curnta
La16 Dividendo ordinario
an Dividendo a cuenta
1047 Dividendo a coenta
Loz Dividenido acoenta
72 Dividendo ordinarin

d) In the case of distribution of dividends charged Lo reserves,
designation of the financial year [rom which the applied reserve
is applicable and whether they have been Laxed al the 0%, 19% or
general rale Lax rale.

The Company has distributed the [ollowing dividends, charged 1o Reserves:
Sujeto al tipoode  No wjeto al tipo de

gravamon del w's grava

Miles de enros

t e abrdl e 2020

fr e abardl il 200200

i o Julior de 2020

o dde septiembre de o
1y ile noviembire de sozo
o dde Junio de 20

1 dle miarso de soxy

el Wi Ty
1572 Con cargo a prima de emision
1 G vargo a tras agariaciones
1512 Con cargo o peima de eandsion
1607 Con cargo a prima de emishin
4200 Con cargo o prima de emisiin
1047 Con cargo n prima de emiskin
van Con eargo s poima de emiskin
28 e Junio de azs 2ol Con eargo i obras sportacdones
e octubire de o2 ol Con cargo o otres sportaciones
Tutal - (Rt

¢} Date of the dividend distribution agreement referred lo in
points ¢) and d) above.

The dates of the distribution of dividends mentioned in ¢) and d) arve indicated in their respective sections.

43
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Annex IV - Regulalory requirements arising [rom the status of SOCIMI. for the 2022 financial year (continued)

Observalion requirement

Information on the 2oz2z lnancial year

f) Date of acquisition of the properties intended for the lease and of
the equity units in the capital of entities referred to in paragraph 1 of
article 2 of this Law,

The Company does nol have propertics direetly, if through its subsidiaries, their acquisition dates are deseribed in
Annex L.

#) ldentilication of the asset thal is compuled within 80% referred o in
paragraph rolarticle 3 ol this Law.

The assels that count within 80%, as referred to in section 1 of article 3 of the Law, are those related to urban
buildings devoled Lo leasing aclivily, owned by the subsidiaries listed in section [).

) Reserves [rom Gnaneial years in which the special tax regime
eslablished in this Law has been applicable, which have been arranged
in the 1ax period, that is not for its distribution or to offsel losses,
identifving financial vear from which such reserves originale.

There are no reserves [rom financial years prior to the application of the tax regime established by the Law that
are nol used for ils distribution or 1o olset losses.




Healtheare Activos Yield SOCIMIL, S.A.

Management report
ECONOMIC EVOLUTION OF THE BUSINESS

Healthcare Activos Yield SOCIMI, S.A. is the head company of group making up leading platform
specialising in real estate assets in the healthcare and dependence sector in Iberia, with a portfolio of
leased assets carefully selected under long-term contracts with top-tier European operators.

On 23 December 2021, the Company signed an agreement with a consortium of global institutional
investors to invest in the platform and support its future long-term growth. Within the same
framework, an agreement was signed for the refinancing of the Group's debt, of which the Company
is the head, through the cancellation of its outstanding debt, and the signing of a new loan agreement
with BNP Paribas and Credit Agricole. On 31 March 2022, the conditions precedent established in these
agreements were met, and consequently, the following institutional investors took shares in the
Company's capital: REI Spain, B.V., Durham County Council Pension Fund (Durham). TfL Trustee
Company Limited. trustee of T{L Pension Fund (Transport for London). CBRE European Venture Fund
(CBRE EVF) and One Hundred and Twenty Investment Company LLC (Abu Dhabi Sovereign Wealth
Fund).

Concomitantly, the Company acquired a portfolio of 14 buildings located mainly on the Iberian
Peninsula, owned by the Spanish company Healthcare Activos Investment S.A. and the Portuguese
company HAECP Lda., with a total valuation of approximately 203 million euros.

The operation described has made it possible for the Company and its subsidiaries to continue with
the international expansion plan, having situated the market value of the investments managed by the
Group of which the Company is head at as much as 725 million euros at 31 December 2022, and with a
presence in Spain. Portugal and Belgium.

During the 2022 financial year, the Company reached a turnover amount of 2,428 thousand euros, with
the turnover in the 2021 financial year amounting to 5,758 thousand euros. Turnover for the 2022
financial year is made up of the income received by the Company for dividends and financial interests.
derived from the financing activity that the Company conducts with its subsidiaries to carry out the
Group's expansion plan. The 2021 financial vear turnover was only comprised of the dividends received
from subsidiaries.

At the end of financial vears 2022 and 2021, the Group. of which the Company is the head, has a total
of 56 assets (33 assets at the end of financial year 2021) with a capacity of more than 7.065 beds, carefully
selected in locations with fundamental supply-demand solids. Al assets are leased to reputable
operators under long-term contracts.

On 1 October 2020, the shares of the Company were technically listed in the “Euronext Access” stock
market in Paris.

The COVID-19 crisis has caused serious consequences in the economy and in global securities
markets. In this situation, the healthcare and dependence sector have proven to he essential
infrastructures despite the serious threats the pandemic poses. This crisis is putting fundamental
aspects of the Group's business to the test, and they are proving solid. Excellent, carefully selected
locations, leases to first-class operators with high rent coverage and triple net long-term rental
contracts guaranteed by the Parent Company, with fixed income and indexed to the CPL. Thanks to
this. the Group's results and treasury projections have not been affected.

The company has long-term commitments to support European healthcare operators in their
expansion plans, cooperating with them through real estate infrastructure. Furthermore, the
Company collaborates closely with the different operators of the healthcare sector contributing to the
development of projects, measures and sector regulatory framework to achieve the best treatment and
care of people, thus generating sustainable and long-term value for all interest groups, although




Healtheare Activos Yield SOCIMI, S.A.

during financial years 2022 and 2021 the Group has not been explicitly capitalised.
INVESTMENTS

As of the end of financial year 2022, the Company’s subsidiaries have invested 320 million euros in the
assets valuated at the end of the 2022 financial year at 725 million euros and plans to increase its
investments in the short term in order to expand its assets portfolio in the healthcare sector during
the 2023 financial year.

In the 2022 financial year, as a consequence of the described transaction completed on 31 March 2022,
the Company acquired 100% of the shares in the companies described in the attached notes to the
annual accounts (Note 6) and made the contributions necessary to its subsidiaries to continue with
the Group's expansion plan, and grow the portfolio of assets under management.

During the 2021 financial year, the Company did not make investments in purchasing new stakes in
group companies, although it did make the necessary contributions to subsidiaries to carry out the
expansion of assets under management.

RESEARCH AND DEVELOPMENT ACTIVITIES

The Company has not carried out research and development activities during financial years 2022 and

2021.

ACQUISITION OF OWN SHARES

Consequently, at the end of financial years 2022 and 2021, the Company has no own shares.
FINANCIAL RISK FACTORS

The Company’s activities do not present significant concentrations of financial risks.
DERIVATIVE FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

During financial years 2022 and 2021, the Company has not contracted derivative financial instruments
in order to hedge the interest rate risk.

\WERAGE PAYMENT PERIOD

The Company's average payment period during financial years 2022 and 2021 has been 30 days.
SUBSEQUENT EVENTS

On 15 March 2023, the Company acquired 100% of the shares of the Portuguese company Rockmont
Properties. S.A. for EUR 6.3 million, which owns an operating hospital clinic in Montijo (Lisboa,

Portugal) and managed by CUF. The events described above do not alter the financial statements at
vear-end 2022,
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Healtheare Activos Yield SOCIVIL S.A.

On March 29. 2023, the Directors of Healtheare Activos Yield SOCIMIL S.A. in compliance with the
requisiles established in Article 253.2 of the Consolidaled Text of the Capital Companies Act and in
Article 37 of the Commercial Code, have met and herehy prepare the annual financial statements for
Lthe linancial vear spanning [rom January 1. 2022 Lo December 31, 2022, The annual [inancial stalements
are comprised of the Balance Sheel. the Profit and Loss Account, the Statement of Retained Farnings.,
the Cash Flow Statement, the Annual Report and the Directors’ Reporl.

Signees:
\Mr. Jorge Guarner Mufidz Mr. Allwrlnﬁcrnﬁndcz Sabater
%/ il
/ § /‘LG-Z’/
Mr. Mich; L‘l%ﬂl'm Campbell \Ms. Khadija Befizit
. Alexander van Riel Ms. Line Verroken
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